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Vision & Mission Statements

Visi
Our vision is to be one of the leading Islamic Financial
Institution within Modaraba sector by offering Shari'ah

compliant solutions for an optimal satisfaction of
customers.

Mission

The basic aim of Sindh Modaraba is to seek Allah’s
blessing for transformation of our business dealings in
accordance with the principles enshrined in the Islamic
Shariah and to develop an Islamic Institution by
implementing Allah’s will in the line with the practices of
His Prophet (P.B.U.H.) by meeting its stated objectives
built on Trust, Integrity, Innovation and Good Governance
for meeting expectation of its stakeholders.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Mr, Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chairman
Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji
Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro

Mr, Kamal Ahmed -Acting Chief Executive
Mr. RehanAnjum
Ms. Rukhsana Narejo

# Mr. Ishfague Ahmed
CFO &Company Secretary
M. Adnan Shakeel
Audit Committee
Mr.Rehan Anjum -Chairman
Ms. Rukhsana Narejo -Member
Human Resource Committes
Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chairman
Mr.Sami ul Hag Khilji -Member
Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro -Member
Nomination Committee
Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro -Chainman
Wr. Waseem Mehdi Syed -Member
Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Member
Procurement Committee
Mr.Sami ul Hag Khilji ~Chainman
Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Member
Risk Management Committee
Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chainman
Mr. Rehan Anjum -Member
Ms, Rukhsana Narejo -Member

Bankers

Sindh Bank Limited -lslamic Banking (Saadat)
Meezan Bank Limited
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Auditors
Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar
Chartered Accountants

Note:

* The Board of Directors has a
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=Independent Director

-Man-Executive Director
-Mon-Executive Director
-Non-Execulive Director
-Mon-Executive Director
-Mon-Executive Director

-Chief Executive Officer

Shariah Advisor
Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz

Legal Advisor
Mohsin Tayebaly& Co.

Share Registrar

F.D. Registrar Services Pyl. Lid.

Office # 1705, 17th Floor, Saima Trade
Tower-&, ||, Chundrigarh Road
Karachi

Registered/Head Office
1™ Floor, Imperial Court Building,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road.

Karachi
Tel: (92-21)35640708-9

Lahore Branch
30-30A, Commercial Building

The Mall
Lahore

ointed Mr Ishfague Ahmed as Chief Executive Officer in place of

Mr. Kamal Ahmed-Acting Slﬁlief Executive. Approval of Registrar Modaraba-SECP has
been received in this regard. Mr. Ishfague Ahmed has taken over the charge as CEC from 08th September 2022,
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Directors’ Report

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba Management Limited we are presenting the 8 annual
report of Sindh Modaraba together with Audited Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2022,

1. Economy

Economic conditions deteriorated significantly lowards the end of FY 2022 The counlry’s economy came lo
standstill dus to rising commodity prices, which inflated not only the import bill and current account deficit but
pushed the country towardsthe balance of payments crisis. PKR/USD stayed vulnerable and the currency lost
16% against the greenback while international reserves have dwindied to barely six weeks of import cover.Current
economic situation is a result of rising commodity prices as well as palitical instability after April, 22.GoP's finances
and economy are al a crucial stage right now and IMF is the lifeline to avoid defaull, Pakistan needs to get IMF
hack an the table throughthe intreduction of various taxes In order 1o keep the economy floating, however, the task
has becoms challenging due to the domestic political situation. Besides, the external account crisis, inflation is
making matters worse for the general public and industry, Inflation has already louched a level of 21.30% in June-
2022 and inflaticn for 1QTFY23 is expected to average above 25%.

Further, rains and flooding have wreaked havoc in Pakistan. Its expected to be among the worst floods Pakistan
has seen in tha last 30 years. The annual rainfall of Pakistan is 125mm whereas the ongoing season has received
dx mare rains so far. Sindh and Baluchistan have reportedly received the most damage with 5x — Gx more rains as
compared to their respective annual averages, and higher lhan the magnitude recorded during flash floods of
2010-2011 for these provinces, This has severaly impacted lives, health, animals, crops, infrastructure and more.
Sindh hasa 30% share in the agricultural GOP have been worst affected. While it is sarly to assess the impact,
Pakistan, being an agricultural country, with a direct agricuttural contribution to GDP of 23%, could reach a
vulnerable position in the aftermath of these fioods. Repercussions may include higher imports, compromise on
exparts and higher inflation, wiping out afforts of the government to stabilize recent macro headwinds. Based on
preliminary estimates, CAD levels may increase by USE4.4bn (1% of GDP) — assuming no counter measures are
taken, while around 30% of CPI baskel is exposed to threat of higher prices. Moreover, addiional support from
government may also put pressure on the fiscal side, To recall, during the 2010-2011 floods, Pakistan received a
curmulative support of US54.5bn from IMF. UN, World Bank and ADB; whereas a flood surcharge' of 15% was
announced for Tax year 2011 on all taxable income in a way to fund the additional costs born regarding relief,
restoration and any prospective subsidies fo the affected segments.

2. Operating Results and Business Ovarview

The Modaraba eamed a net profit of Rs. 68.3T7million during the year under review as compared to a profit of Rs.
75.82 million earned during the year ended June 30, 2021 The profit before tax increased by Rs. 24 .87 million,
however, the profit after tax decreased by Rs. 8.51 million. This was due to the implication of the income tax on
the profit earned by Modaraba, which became effective on 1# July 2021, During the year, the Modaraba has
dishurzsed Rs. 334.36 million as lslamic financing and 3BP has also increased ils policy rate to 15%, which
Increased the eamings from the financing portfclio and funds placed with the banks. The Financing Portfolio of the
Modaraba increased by Rs. 289 Milion to Rs.902 Million, Further, with the Increase in the portfolio, DM revenue
Increased by Rs. 15.03 million dues (o an increase in the weaighted average rate of return by 1.98%, The operating
expenses decreased to Rs. 40.88 million as compared to Rs. 46.44 million in the same period last year due to
sfrict control over expenses of the Modaraba. The operating results for the year ending June 30, 2022, are
summarized in the table below:

June 30, 2022 | June 30, 2021
- -———-RUpBER S -

Balance Sheet

Certificate capital 450,000,000
Total equity 1,625,056,964
Investment in ljaral/Diminishing Musharaka 318.617.511
Profit & Loss

Revanue (net of ljarah asset depreciation) 138 244 547
Operating expenseas 46,442 770
Profit before management fee 78,624 804
Met Profit before tax 75,822,337
Met Profit after tax 75,822 337
Appropriations

Profit distribution @@ 12.00% (2021: 10.00%) 45,000,000
Statutory Reserve 26,537,818
Earning per Certificate 1.68
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Directors’ Report
3. Outlook

GDP growth is set o slow down to 3.50% in FY-23 after two years of above-average growth period, Commaodity
prices and poltical situation are the key factors to watch for FY-23. The country needs to introduce taxes and slow
down its economic activity, which is a necessity for the revival of IMF program. SBF increased policy rate by 1.25%
to 15% in July-2022 MPS, however, market expects policy rate to remain stable at current rate of 15% during
shorter terms. Cumulatively, SBF has already hiked its policy rate by 800bps in the last eleven months which is
resulling In reguired outcomes of slowing down econamy and lowering pressure on imporls, However, the
country’s real interest rate is negative by 10% when locked from the perspective of July-2022 inflation number,
which was 24.90%.

Management is reviewing the current economic situation very cautiously and sights current rising interest rate as
pasitive for the profitability of the Modaraba, However, the rising interast rates may increassa non-parforming loan
and can also lead to decline of economic activity within the country. Management of the Modaraba continues to
make cautious efforts for deployment of avallable funds in the financing business without compromising on the
quality of the portfolio.

4. Profit distribution

The Board of Directors has approved a cash dividend @@ 12.00% (2021:10.00%)i.e.Rs. 1.20 (2021: Rs.1.00} per
certificate for the year ended 30" June 2022,

Az par ModarabaRegulations issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, every Modaraba may
create reserve fund to which shall be credited an amount of s after-tax profits or any part thereof.

The Board of Directors has appropriated Rs.13,262 644/ - (20% ) towards the Statutory Reserve.

5. External Annual Audit

The financial statements of Modaraba have been audited without any gualification by the auditors namely Mis.
Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Charered Accountants,

6. Corporate Governance

The Modaraba is required to comply with various requirements of the Fublic Sector Companies (Corporate
Governanca) Rules, 2013 (Rules) as well as Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governanca) Regulations
2019 (the CCG) issued by the SECP.

The statutory auditors are also reguired to issue their review report over the compliance statement of the best
practices, which is published with the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the CCG and Rules and confirms that:

#  Tha Board has consistantly complied with the relevant principles of corporate govemanca.

=  Financial statements, prepared by the managemant, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in equity.
Froper books of account have been maintained.

= Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
astimales are based on reasonable and prudent judgmant.

=  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
The appointment of chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their appointment along
with the remuneration poficy adopted are in the bast interasts of the Modaraba as well as in line with the
best practices.

= Appainiment of one indepandent director Is in process due lo sad demise of Mr. Habibullah Khilji.
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of Minancial statements and any depariure there fram has been adeguately disclosed and
explained.

= There are no slalutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding
as on June 30, 2022, except for thozse disclosed in financial statements.

&  Thea value of Investmant in Employees Provident Fund based on financial statements of the Fund as of
June 30, 2022 is Rs. 11.997 million {2021: Rs. 9.310 million}.

s Koy operating and financial data of last six years Is annexad.

¢ SixBoard Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year, Allendance of each director is
appended hereunder:
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Mr. Waseem Mehdl Syed

Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro

Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji

Mr. Habibullah Khiljl {Deceased)
Mr. Rehan Anjum

Ms. Rukhsana Marejo

Mr, Kamal Ahmed — Acting CEQ

MMM =Sk

Leave of absences were granted to the directors who could not attend the meeting.

& Four Audit Committee meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year under review.
Altendance of each member is appended hereunder;

Mr. Rehan Anjum

Ms. Rukhsana Marejo

Mr. Habibullah Khiljl {Deceased)
Mr, Kamal Ahmed — Acting CED

== Py B

¢« Three Human Resource Commitiee Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the vear under
raview, Attendance of each member is appended hersunder;

M, Waseam Mehdi Syed

Mr. Rehan Anjum

Ms. Rukhsana Marejo

Mr. Kamal Ahmad — Acting CEO

=% L RS

*  Four Risk Management Committee Meetings of the Modaraba Company wera held during the year under
review. Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

Mr. Waseemn Mehdi Syad

Mr. Rehan Anjum

Ms, Rukhsana Nareja

Mr. Kamal Ahmed — Acting CEO

el T =

*  One Nominalion Commiltee maeling of the Modaraba Company were held during the year under raview
Attandance of each member is appended hersunder:

Mr. Waseern Mehdi Syed 1
Mr, Rehan Anjum 1
Mr, Kamal Ahmed — Acting CEOQ 1

& The Board has also established Procurement Committee as required under the Rules. No meeting of this
committes was held during the year.,

The pattern of cartificate holding is annexed to this report,

The Directors, CEO, Executives and their spouses and minor children did not carry out any transaction in
the cerlificatas of the Modaraba during the year,

7
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Directors’ Report

7. The Board of Directors

The Board expressed condolences and sympathies onthe sad demise of Mr, Zulfigar Ali- Chief Executive Officer
and Mr. Habibullah Khiljl — Director. During the year, Mr. Said Jamal Abro and Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji were
appointed as non-executive directors.

Further, Board had appeointed Acting Chief Executive among the non-Executive Directors in place of deceased
CEODQ for transitional period as per Modaraba Regulations. The Board has also appointed new Chief Executive
Officer on the Board in place of Mr, Kamal Ahmed — Acting CEQ and approval of Registrar Modaraba has beesn
raceived,

The Board appreciated the valued contributicns made by the out-going/deceased directors and welcomed new
directors on the board,

B. Social Responsibility

The Modaraba ensures its role of a Responsible Corporate Citizen by conducting business in line with its
missionincarporating shariah principles in a socially respansible and ethical manner, protecting the environment,
and suppaorting the communities and cultures with which it works.

The Madaraba is committed o maintain the highest standards of integrity and corporate govemnmance practices in
order to maintain excellence in its daily oparations, and to build-up confidence in its governance systams.

The Modaraba constantly strives to build trust and demonstrate respect for human dignity and rights in all
relationships, including respect for cultures, customs and values of individuals and groups,

It is our ethical responsibility to stand for Flood victims' support; therefore, the Board of Directors is approved an
amount of Rs, 10 Million (for the supply of tents and food/eatable bags) to contribute for this Nobel Cause.

8. Credit Rating

WIS Credit Rating Company has maintained long term and short term credit rating of A+ and A-1respectively to the
Modaraba with a stable outiook,

10. Auditors

The Board has approved the appointment of Baker Tilly Mehmood |drees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as
external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023.However, their appointment will be subject to the approval of
Registrar Modaraba,

11. Acknowledgment by the Management/Board
The Board would like to thank the SECP and our Sharah Advisor for their continued guidance and support. It
would also like to thank their valued customers of the Modaraba for their trust and suppart. The Managamaent also

wishes o record their appreciation, dedication and hard work of the employees of the Modaraba without which it
would not have been possible to turn in such an improved parformance.

(O behalf of the Board)

Kamal Ahmed Rehan Anjum
Acting CEQ/Director Director
Karachi,

Seplember 0T, 2022
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Key Operating & Financial Data

Balance Sheet
Cartificate capital
Resarves

Total equity

Total Assets
Financing Portfolio
Nen-perfarming loans
Provision {excluding gensral)
Current Assels
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Profit & Loss

Revenue (net of IR dep & DM
SUSp.)

Operating expenses

Profit before management fee
Profit before tax

Profit after tax

Appropriations
Profit distribution (%)
Profit distribution
Statutory Reserve

Financial Ratios

Earning per Certificate

Mel profit ratio befors lax (%)
Met profit ratio after tax (%)
NPL ratio

NPL cover ratio

P/E Ratio

Breakup Valua

Dbl ratio (%)

Current ralio

Earning asset to total assat (%)
Returm on asset (%)

Return an equity (%)

Dbt Equity (%)

o i o L1 i s, Btk Ty

SINDH MODARABA

022 a3 2020 2018 . 2018 AT
30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2022 30-Jun-2022 )-Jun-2022
450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000 450,000,000
195848970 175,056,964 150,974 420 113,046,762 65786214 33671641
1645948970 1625056964 1609974420 1,083,046762 1015786214 983,671,641
1,684,584,728 1,657,153,740 1,706,170,652 1,639,272,831 1569428718 1,028,593706
901,928,698 859,574,172 816236706 66B.717.824 @76 717,777 631611507
110,748,423 120,753,848 55,286,568 - . -
54 764 776 41,267 559 27,643,292 . . .
1,173,981,336 1,200,357,149 1,177,337,068 1,218410905 1096695414 468,490,017
38,635,758 32,006,776 96,195232 576218089 553466854 25344 041
18,635,758 32,095,776 05,196,232 576,226,080 553842504 44,922 085
167,021,948 138,244 547 188,071,755 125016560 88788355 55,107,914
40,887,729 46442770 39,222 816 32113806 28871650 24,123,803
113,522,189 78,624,804 124,111,038 93,359,412 60,240,405 30,240,620
100,733,557 75,822,337 107,884,760 B1,153,602  52,364573 26,286,960
66,313,222 75872337 107,884,760 81,153,602 52,364,573 26,286,960
12.00% 10,00% 13.50% 13.50% 7.50% 4.50%
54000000 45,000,000 60,750,000 60,750,000 33,750,000 20,250,000
13262 644 26537 818 43153004 24345 081 15,700,372 5,257,302
1.47 1.68 2.40 1.80 1.16 0.58
60.31% 54.85% 57.36% 64.91% 58.98% 47.70%
39.70% 54 854 57.36% 64.91% 58.98% 47.70%
12.28% 14.05% B.77% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
49.00% 34.17% 50.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
476 5.22 342 4.16 £.02 7.87

14.35 13.89 13.55 12,51 11.46 10.75
2.29% 1.94% 5.64% 35.15% 35.28% 4.37%

30.39 2740 12.24 211 1.98 18.48
94.48% 92.08% 95.61% 098.02% 93.22% B7.45%
3.97% 4.51% 6.45% 5.06% 4.03% 3.41%
4.05% 4 69% B.07% 7.81% 5.24% 361%
2.35% 1.98% 5.98% 54.21% 54.50% 4.57%
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Si NDH Mﬂ DARABA

Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

This slatemeant |5 being presaented 1o comply with the Listed Companias (Code of Corporate Governanca)Regulations 201 Sand
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Govemnance) Rules 2013 (the Rules) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, whereby a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance for the

year ended June 30, 2022

The Board of Directors of Sindh Modzraba Management Limited - the Modaraba Management Company (the Manzgement
Company) is responsible for management of affairs of Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba)., The Managemant Company has
complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner;

§. No. | Provision of the Rules Rule no. Y [ N
Tick the relevant box
The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, asdefined under 2(d)
1. the Rules. v
2. |The Board has al leasl one-third of its total members as indepandent dirsctors, 3(2) ‘/
Al present the Board includes:
Category Names Date of
appointment
Independent Mr, Waseem Mehdi Syed
Direttars ‘ ¥ 26 Movember 2020
i
Aching Chie Mr. Kamal Ahmed 12 October 2021
Executive Officer
Mr. Kamal shmed 15 August 2017
Nan-E , Ms. Rukhsana Narejo 02 February 2021
on-Execulive Mr. Rehan Anjum 02 February 2021
Directors Mr, Sajid Jamal Abro 07 March 2022
Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji 30 May 2022
3 | The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as adirector on more
than five public sector companies and listedcompanies simultaneously, except 3(5)
their subsidiaries.
4, | The appointing authornties have applied the fit and proper criteria N
given in the Annexure to the Rules In making nominations of the
persons for election 85 Board members under the provisions of the
Act.
§. | The chairman of the Board is working separately from the chief executive of the 4(1) .,,,/
Company,
6. |The chairman has been elacted by the Board of directors, 4(4) 1/
7 The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chiefexecutive 5(2) v
on the basis of the il and proper crileria as well as theguidelines specified by
the Commission,
B. ta) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” to ensure that professional 5(4) \f
standards and corporate values are in place.

15
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SINDH ﬁﬂn&m\m

Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule no.

vy | w

Tick the relevant box

(b} The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken todissem-
inate it throughout the company along with its supportingpolicies and
proceduras, including posting the same on the company'swebsite.
(www sindhmodarabaltd.com)

(c) The Board has sel in place adequate systems and conlbrols for
the identification and redressal of grevances  anrsing  from
unethicalpractices.

The Board has established a system of sound internal control, toensure
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity andpropriety; objectivity,
integrity and honesty; and relationship with thestakeholders, in the mannear
prescribed in the Rulas.

5(5)

10,

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict ofinterest policy
to lay down circumstances or considerations when aperson may be deemed to
hawve actual or potential conflict ofinterests, and the procedure for disclosing
such interest

5(5)(b}
{if)

11,

The Board has developed and implemented & policy on anfi-<corruption (o
minimize actual or perceived coiruption in thecompany.

5(5)(b)
{vi)

12,

The Board has ensured eguality of opportunity by establishing openand fair
procedures for making appointments and for determiningtarms and conditions
of service,

5(5)(c)
(i

13.

The Board has ensured compliance with the taw as well as thecompany's
internal rules and procedures relating to publicprocurement, tender
reguiations, and purchasing and technicalstandards, when dealing with
suppliers of goods and services.

5(5)(c)
(i)

14,

The Board has developed & vision or mission statement and corporatestrategy
of the company.

5(6)

15,

The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A
complete record of parliculars of significant policies along with thedates on
which they wera approved or amended, has beenmaintainad,

5{7)

16.

The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of anyservice
defivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service obligation. and has
submilted itz request for appropriatecompansation la tha Governmant for
conzideration.

5(8)

MIA

17,

The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions requirements received
from the Govemment.

5(11)

M8,

16
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)} Rules, 2013

5. No.

Provision of the Rules

Rule no.

¥

|

Tlek the relevant box

18,

aj) The Board has met at least four times during the year,

k) Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agendaand working
papers, ware circulated at least seven days before the meetings,

c)  The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

6(1)
6(2)

6(3)

v
v

<

19,

The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of seniormanagement
on annual basisand held them accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals
and key performance indicators set for this purpose,

8{2)

The Board has reviewed and approved the related party Iransactionsplaced
before it after recommendations of the audil commillea, Aparly wise record of
fransactions entered into with the related partiesduring the vear has been
maintained.

21,

al  The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, andbalance
sheot as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter ofthe year as
well as the financial year end.

by Incase of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half yearly accountsand
undertaken limited scope review by the auditors.

¢} The Board has placed the annual financial statements on thecompany's
website.

10

22,

All the Board members underwent an onentalion course arranged by the
company o apprise them of the material developments andinformation as
specified in the Rules.

11

23,

al  The Board has formed the reguisite committess, as specified inthe Rules.

b  The committess were provided wilh written larm of reference
defining their duties, authority and composition,

c)  The minutes of the mestings of the commitiess were circulaled toall the
Board members,

d)  The commitlees were chaired by the following non-executivedirectors:

12

— - —— ] —

Audit Committee o ‘Rehan Anjum

Risk Management 3 Waseem Mehdi Syed
Committes

Hurman Resources 3 Waseem Mehdi Syed
Committes

Pracurament 2 Rehan Anjum
Committes

Momination Commities 3 Wasaem Mehdi Syed

24,

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor, by whatever namecatled, with their
remunaration and terms and conditions ofemployment

13

17
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No. | Provision of the Rules Rule no. ¥ I N
Tick the relevant box

25, The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have
requisitegualification prescribed in the Rules.

26, The company has adopted Intermational Financial Reporting Standardsnotified
by the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 2250f the Act. 16 o

14 v

27, The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliancewith the 17 v
raquiremants of the Act and the Rules and fully describes thesalient matters
required o be disclosed.

28, The directors, CEQ and executives, or their relatives, are not, directlyor 18 v
indirectly, concerned or Interested in any contract or arrangemententered into
by or on behalf of the company except those disclosed tothe company.

28, al  Aformal and transparent procedure for fixing the remunerationpackages
of individual directors has been set in place and no directons involved in 19
deciding his own remuneration,
N/A

k)  The annual report of the company confaing criteria and details
ofremuneraticn of each director.

30. The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by thechief 20 v
executive and chief financial officer before consideration andapproval of the
audil sommittes and lhe Board,

31. | The Board has formed an audit committes, with defined and written 21(1) v

terms of reference, and having the following members: and
21(2)

Mame of member Category Professional background

Mr. Rehan Anjum Mon-execulive | Professional Banker
s, Rukhsana Marejo Mon-execulive | Professienal Banker

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of
the audit commilles,

32 al  The chief financial officer, the chiefl internal auditor, and arepresentative of]  21(3) v
the external auditors attended all meetings of theaudil commilies at which
issues relating to accounts and audit werediscussed.

bl The audit committes mel the external auditors, al least oncea ayear,
without the presence of the chief financial officer, the chiefinternal auditor v
and other executives.

cj  The audit committee met the chief internal auditor and other membars of
the internal audit function, at feast once a year, without the presence of
chiaf financial officer and the external auditors.

158
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

§. No. | Provision of the Rules Rule no. ¥ I N
Tick the relevant box
33 al The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, whichhas an 22 vy
audit charter, duly approved by the audit committee.
b}  Thea chief internal auditor has requisite qualification andexperiance
prescribed in the Rules. v
¢} The internal audit reporis have been provided to the extemalauditors for
their review, v
34 Thea external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm 23(4) ¥
and all its partners are in compliance with Interational Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guideiines on Code of Ethics as applicable in
Pakistan,
35, The auditors have confirmed that thay have observed applicable 23(5) v
guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to provision of non-awdit
Services.

CERTAIN ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER CCG

« Al ihe directors of the Company are registered as laxpayers and none of them has defaulted In payment of any loan to
a hanking company, a DFI or an NBFI of, being a member of a slock exchange, has been declared as a defauller by
that stock exchange.

« Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material fransactions, including appointment
and determination of remuneraticn and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO, other executive and non-
executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

« The 'closed period’, prior to the announcement of interimifinal results, and business decisions, which may materially
affect the market price of Modaraba's cerificates, was determined and infimated to directors, employees and stock
exchange.

= Matenalprice sensitve information has been disseminated among all market particpants at once through stock
exchange

«  The statutory auditors of tha company have confirmed that they have been givan a satisfactory rating under tha Cuality
Control Reviaw program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partnars of the firm, their spouses and minor children do
not hold shares of the company

» The Company has complied with the reguiremants relating to maintenance of register of persons having inside
information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained propear record including basis
for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

{On behalfl of the Board)

Kamal Ahmed Waseem Mehdi Syed
Acting CEQ/Non-Executive Director Chairmani/independent Director
Karachi.

Sepltember 07, 2022

19
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Explanation for Non-Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied
with. [except for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the company
to seek compliance by the end of next accounting year):

Sr. Rule/sub- Reasons for non-compliance Future course of action
No rule no.
: 3(2) Death/Demise of one independent | The company is in the
director. processofappointing a suitable

candidate in his place and will be
complied soon.

{On behalf of the Board)

Kamal Ahmed Waseem Mehdi Syed
Acting CEQ/Non-Executive Director Chairmanfindependent Director
Karachi

September 07, 2022
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Shari’ah Advisor’s Report

{&)\"3}’5\" :
Ld L& l' 8
=)

rzuli” =t =

| have conducted the Shar'ah review of Sindh Modaraba managed by Sindh Modaraba Management Limited for the
financial year ended June 2022 in accordance with the reguirements of the Shari‘ah Compliance and Shari‘ah
Audit Mechanism for Modarabas issued by SECPand report that except the cbservations asreported hereunder, in
my opinian:

The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the Sharfah compliance, in letler and
spirit and the systems, procedures andpolicies adopted by the Modaraba are in line with the Sharah
principles;

During the year, the financingswere mainly done on Diminishing Musharakah mode which is a Shanah
Compliant made of financing.

The Modaraba has organized trainings on the Islamic Law of Contract and its practical implementation &
challenges in the modern day financial industry,

The agresment(s) entered into by the Modaraba during the period are Shari’sh compliant and the financing
agreement(s) have been axecuted on the formats as approved by the Religious Board of SECP and all the
related conditions have been met;

To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the business transactions
undertaken by the Modaraba and all olher matters incidental thereto are in conformity with the Shariah
requirements as well as the requirements of the Prospectus, Islamic Financial Accounting Standards as
applicable in Pakistan, specific AADIF| Shariah Standardswhich have been adopted by SECP and the
Sharah Compliance &Shan'ah Audit Regulations for Modarabas.

The Modaraba does not have any deposit raising product at the moment, therefore no profit sharing ratios,
profits and charging of losses (il any) relaling to any deposit raising product apply.

vi. Mo eamings have been realized from the sources or by means prohibited by Shari'af.

Motes

During the year, an amount of Rs. 543,192/ has been realized as charity on account of delay in payment by
cuslomers.

Recommendation

Several frainings have been conducted on Islamic Finance and its products. However, it is recommended that the Modaraba
should organize more trainings for capacity building of s stafl and managemeant.

Conclusion

In my opinion and ta the best of my knowledge and Information provided by the Modaraba, | am of the view that

during

the period overall business aclivities of the Modaraba are Shariah Compliant.

And Aliah knows best.

bufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz
Shan’ah Advisor
Sindh Modaraba

Karachi

26-08-2022
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SINDH MODARABA

Auditors’ Review Report To The Members On The Statement Of Compliance
With The Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 And Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Listed
Companies(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2018 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 (both hereinafter referred to as ‘Codes’) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Sindh Modaraba Management Limited(the Management Company)for the year ended June 30, 2022 to
comply with the requirements of regulation 36of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code and the Rules is that of the Board of the Management
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions
of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the
Code or the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Management Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Code and the
Rules,

Az a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not reguired to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal controls, the Modaraba's
corporate governance proceduras and risks.

Further, the Code and the Rules requires the Company 1o place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval
its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out an terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are
also required to be separately placed before the audil committee. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba's compliance, in all material respects, with the
best praclices contained in the Code and lhe Rules as applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended June
30, 2022,

Further, we highlight instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the Rules as reflected in
Schedule Il to the annexed Statement of Compliance.

Baker Tilly Mehmood ldrees Qamar

Chartered Accountants
Place : Karachi.

Date : September 22, 2022
Mehmood A, Razzak

UDIN: CR2022101511MHXEPITE Engagement Partner
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Si NDH Mﬂ DARABA

Auditors’ Report to the Certificate Holders

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of SINDH MobaraBA (the Modaraba) as at
June 30, 2022 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income. cash flow
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here in after
referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

These financial statements are the Modaraba Management Company's [Sindh Modaraba Management
Limited] responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a system of inlernal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX1 of 1980}, and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1881, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of any matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by the Management Company in respect
of the Sindh Modaraba, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) in our opinicn, proper books of accounts have bean kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the
Sindh Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Contral)
Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1280), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

b} in our opinion:

il the balance sheel and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up
in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXX of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules 1981, and are in
agreement with the books of accounts and are further in agreement with accounting policies
consistently applied;

i}  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba's business; and

iii} the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year wera
accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba.

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatlation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX of 1980), and the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, in the manner so required and respectively give a
true and fair view of the state of Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit, other
comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then endead; and

d) in our opinion, £Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980),
was deducted by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7
of that Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar

Place : Karachi. Chartered Accountants

Date : September 22, 2022
Mehmood A. Razzak

UDIN : AR202210151tX70Yrubi Engagement Partner
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
ASSETS Note ™ - Rupees - e
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 4 494,176,101 475,524,291
Shaort term investments 5 320,000,000 320,000,000
Advances, prepayments and other receivables & 20,933 411 37,136,016
Current portion of Diminishing Musharaka 7 338,062,224 367,318,842
Current portion of long lerm loan 8 809,600 378,000
Total current assets 1,173,981,336 1,200,357,149
Non - current assets
Dirninishing Musharaka 7 505,645,798 447 293 669
ljarah assets ] - 5,005,000
Long term loan 8 2,378,966 1,102,500
Fixed assets - in own use 10 2,578,628 3,395,422
Total non - current assets 510,603,392 456 796 591
TOTAL ASSETS 1,684 584, 728 1,6567,153,740
LIABILITIES AND CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Creditars, accrued and other liabilities 11 33,269,664 26,438 518
Current portion of customers' security deposit 12 - 5,005,000
Frovision for taxation 22 4,578,170 -
Profit distribution payable 787,924 653,258

38,635,758 32,096,776

MNon - current liabilities
Customers' security deposit 12 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,635,758 32,096,776
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY
Authorized certificate capital 13 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital 13 450,000,000 450,000,000
Reserves 14 195,948,970 175,056,964
Long term loan 15 | 1,000,000,000 1,000, 000,000

1,645,948,970 1,625,056,964
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,684,584 728 1,657, 153,740
Contingencies and commitments 16

SINDH MODARABA

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral pan of these financial stafements.

Far Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

L o

Acting Chief Executive Director

£
=

Chief Financial Officar

NMM

Chairman
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Income from:

- Diminishing Musharaka

- Income from ljarah financing-net
- Bank deposits

- Term deposit receipts

Administrative and operating expenses
Provision for doubtful receivables

Other income - net

Modaraba Managemenl Company’s remuneralion

Note

17

18
19

21

Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's remuneration

Reversal / (provision) of workers' welfare fund

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per cerlificate - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

22

23

(54,146,744)

112,875,204

646,965

113,522,169

(11,352,217)
(1,475.788)

(12,828,005)

100,694,164

(34,380,942)

66,313,222

1.47

Si NDH Mﬂ DARABA

June 30,2022 June 30,2021

s Rupees —eseceecmimmamman

94,065,161 79,027 424

- 569,356

46,726,622 43,836,825

26,230,165 14,810,942

167,021,948 138,244,547
(40,887,729) (46,442, 770)
(13,259,015) (13,513,618)

(59,956,388)

78,288,159

336,645

78,624,804

(7,862,480}
(1,022,123}
6,082,136
(2,802,467)

75,822,337

75,822,337

1.68

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

Chairman Acting Chief Exacutive
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SINDH MODARABA

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2022

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Ll + 111 11-1: - SO

Profit for the year 66,313,222 75,822,337

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

- items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account - -
- itemns that will not be reclassified to profif and loss accoun! subsequently - -
Actuarial (loss) / gain an defined benefit plan (421,216) 10,207
Total comprehensive income for the year 65,892,006 75,832,544

The annexed notes 1 fo 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

] -~
Chalriman Acting Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30,2022 Juna 30,2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Mata e rraminmeet RuUpees ---esmneeo. _—
Profit before taxation 100,694,164 75,822,337
Adjustments for non - cash and other items
Depraciation on jarah assets 9 - 2,143,082
Depreciation on fixed asseats - in own use 10.7 1,431,881 1,332,608
Amaortization of intangible assets 10.2 74,904 319,851
Pravigion for doubtful receivables 19 13,259,015 13,513,618
Reversal { (Provision) for workers' welfare fund - (6,082, 136)
Income suspended in respect of diminishing musharaka 3,289,512 6407072
Income on bank deposits (46.726,622) {43,836 ,825)
Income on term deposil receipts (26,230,165} {14,810.842)
Provision for gratuity 676,213 1,080,255
Operating losses before working capital changes (54,225,262) (39,933 .307)
Working capital changes
{Increase) / decrease in currant assets
Advances. prepayments and other receivables (16.866,565) (19,113,629}
Dirminishing Musharaka (42,354,526) {43,337.466)
Long term loan 8 {1,708,066) 3,113,000

(60,928,157) {59,338.095)
Increase [ (decrease) in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 6,803,765 (58,261,252)
Customers' security deposil (5,005,000) {2.000)

1,798,765 (58 263,252)

Working capital changes (59,130,392) (117,601.347)
Income received on term deposil receipls 28,270,713 10,085,462
Income recalved on bank depasils 44 662 960 46,047 9F7
Gratuity contribution paid 71.3 (1,070,048) (202,323)
Met cash generated from / (used in) operations 59,202,135 {26,481.201)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale proceeds from disposal of ijarah assets 5,005,000 2,000
Purchase of tangible assets-owned 10.1 (670,101) {819,460
Purchase of intangible assets-owned 10.2 (19,890} (213,110)
Met cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 4,315,009 (1,030.570)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Prafit distributed (44.865,334) (60,671,783)
Met cash used in financing activities (44,865,334) (60,671.723)
Met increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,651,810 {88,183.564)
Cash and cash equivalents at tha beginning of the year 795,524,291 B8B83, 707,855
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3z 814,176,101 795 524,291

The annexed noles 1 to 356 form an integral part of these financial stafemeants,

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

X/‘;é«{

Acting Chief Executive

3

NMM’W

Chairman

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Balance as at Juna 30, 2020

Proft for the wear

Oiher comprehensive income | iloss)

Tranglar 1o slalubory resans

Transaction with Cerlificate Holders

Profie distribution for the year ended June 30, 2019 at Rs. 1.35
{13.5%) par cerlificals

Balance as at Juna 30, 2021

Profit for the yaar

Oiher comgrehensive income | (loss)

Transler o slalutory ressre

Transaction with Cerilicale Holders

Profit distribation for the year anded June 30, 2021
at Ra. 1 [10%} per cartficate

Balance as al June 30, 2022

SINDH MODARABA

|msund, Reserves
subscribed, and Capltal Revernun Total equity
pald-up Statutory Unappropriated || Total reserves Lomp e boan and reserves
cerificate rasarve profit
Rupeas
450,000,000 54,533,606 65,440,734 169,974,420 1,000,000,000 1,609,974 420
- - 7822 337 76,822,337 - THH22 337
- 10,207 naor - 10,207
6,537 818 (26,537 .818) . - :
- (60,750,000 (BO.7S0,000) + (60, 750,000)
ASD,000,000 121,071,504 H3 985460  1Y5056 964  1,000,000000 1,625 056 964
- 66313222 66,313,222 - 66,313,222
= (421,216) (421,218) - 1421,216)
13,262,844 {13,262 844) - - i
- - (45,000,000)  (45,000,000) - (45,000,000)
450,000,000 134,334, 148 61,614,822 185,948,970 1,000,000,000  1,645,948970

The annexed notes T to 35 form an integral part of these financial statemenis.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

Chairman Acting Chief Executive

W
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Director

Chief Financial Officer
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SINDH MODARABA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1.

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba) has been floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed thereunder and is managed by
Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (the Management Company), which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Government of Sindh. The registerad office of the Modaraba is situated at 1st Floor,
Imperal Court, Dr. Ziauddin Abmed Road, Karachi.

The Modaraba is a perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily
engaged in providing Shariah compliant financing facilities to credit werthy customers. The
Modaraba is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has maintained long term rating of A+ and short term rating
of A-1 to the Modaraba. Outlook on the assigned raling is 'Stable’

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise
of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notifled under the Companies Act, 2017, the Islamic
Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, the requirements of lhe Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control)
Ordinance, 1880, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulations for
Modarabas and lhe directives issued by lhe Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP). Wherever provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulations for Modaraba and the Islamic
Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) differ from the IFRS Standards, the provision of and
directives issues under the Companies Act, 2017, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1880, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981,
Modaraba Regulations for Modaraba and the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) have
been followed,

During the current year, the SECP has deferred the applicability of all requirements of IFRS 9 for
modarabas uptil June 30, 2022. The Modaraba had already adopted all the requirements of IFRS 9
in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 with the exception of determining the
provision against financing portfolio. The provision against financing portfolic has been determined in
accordance with the requirements of Modaraba Regulations issued by the SECP.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
recognition of staff retirement benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation at the balance
sheet date.

Functional and presentation currency

ltermns included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Modaraba operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupees, which is the Maodaraba's functional and presentational currency. Figures have bean
rounded off to the nearest Rupee, unless stated otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2.4

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

Use of significant estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the managemeant to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, Income and expenses. |t also requires the management to exercise
judgment in application of the Modaraba's accounting policies. The estimates, judgments and
associated assumptions are based on the management's experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis.

Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised il the
revision affects only that period, or in the pericd of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both the current and fulure periods. The areas where various assumplions and estimates are
significant to the Modaraba's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in the
application of accounting policies are as follows:

a) estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of fixed assets in own
use (note 3.3) and ljarah assets (note 3.4);

b) estimates of useful lives and amortization charge for its intangibles (note 3.3.2)

c) cartain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statement
for actuarial valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation (note 3.11);

d) investments & loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables (note 3.1 and 3.6); and

=3 provision for laxation (note 3.7

MNew and amended standards and interpretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective and relevant

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020, However, these do not
have any significant impact on the Modaraba's financial statements,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective but not relevant

There are certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after July 01, 2020 are considered not to be relevant for the Modaraba's financial
statements and hence have not been detailed here,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective

The new standard, certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after July 01, 2021 are considered not to be relevant for the Modaraba's
financial statements and hence have not been detailed here.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted and applied in the preparation of these financial
statements as set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented
unless other wise slated,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Modaraba becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured
initially at fair value.

Financial assels are derecognized when the contraciual rights lo the cash flows from the financial
assel expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or has expired.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows;

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method.
Discounting is omitted where the eflect of discounting is immaterial. The Modaraba's cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than "hold to collect’ or 'hold to
collect and sell’ are categorized at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irmespective of business
model financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and profit
are accounted for at FVTPL. All financial assets are classified and measured al fair value through
profit or loss unless the Modaraba makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present
gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income.

Despite these requirements, a financial assetl may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair
value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
The Modaraba accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the following conditions:

- they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to collect and sell”; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
3.1.3 Equity instruments

At initial recognition, the Modaraba may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsegquent changes in the fair value of an investment in an eguity
instrument within the scope of this standard that is not held for trading.

The Modaraba subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments
quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial
instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined using valuation
technigues including reference to recent arm's length market transactions or transactions involving
financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis
including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level
3).

Where the Modaraba's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of equity investmenis at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
other income/ (other expenses) in the profit and loss account as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Modaraba's right to receive payments is established.

Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial instruments that is measured at fair value shall be
recognized in profit and loss account unless it is an investment in an equity instrument and the
Modaraba has elected to present gains and losses on that investment in other comprehensive
income.

3.1.4 Impairment of financial asseis

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognize expected
credit losses — the ‘expected credit loss (ECL) model’. This replaces IAS 39's ‘incurred loss model'.
Instruments within the scope of the new requirements included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI that are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Modaraba first identifying a credit loss
event, Instead the Modaraba considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk
and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-locking approach, a distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit nisk ("Stage 1') and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low ('Stage 2°).

Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

12-manth expected credit losses’ are recognized for the first category while 'lifetime expected credit
losses’ are recognized for the second and third category.

32



el vy (o A FLEITS ASCRITRAR B din BHUTTD

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2022

Si NDH Mﬂ DARABA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

3.1.5 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise trade and most other payables, amount due to a related party and
borrowings.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective profit rate
method. Discounting is omitted if the impact is immaterial.

3.1.6 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at amortized cost. These include
balances with banks in deposit and current accounts, short term investment and stamps in hand.

3.3 Fixed assets - In own use
3.3.1 Tangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Modaraba and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit and loss account as and when
incurred. Depreciation on all fixed assels is charged to income on a sfraight - line basis in
accordance with the specified rates.

The useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, al each
reporting date. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the asset is available for use
and on disposals upto the month preceding the month of disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying
amounts. These are recorded in the profit and loss account in the period in which these arise.

3.3.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying
amounts or recognized as separalte asseis, as appropriate, only where it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the items can
be measured reliably.

Amaortization is charged to income using the straight line method in accordance with the specified
rates. The useful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each
reporting date. Amortization is charged from the month the asset is available for use while in the
case of assets disposed of, it is charged till the month preceding the month of disposal.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any, is taken to the profit and loss account in the
period in which these arise.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, if any, is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
represents expenditure on fixed assets in the course of installation and advances for capital
expenditure. Transfers are made to the relevant category of tangible/intangible assets as and when
the assets are available for intended use.

ljarah assets given to customers under agreement

Assets leased out under ljarah are recorded as ljarah assets and are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Depreciation is charged to
income by applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is
written off over the lease term, which is considered to be the estimated useful life of the asset.

- Muj'ir (lessors) presents the assets subject to ljarah in their balance sheet according to the
nature of the asset, distinguished from the assets in own use.

- Costs, including depreciation on the assets given on ljarah, incurred in earning the ljarah
income are recognized as expenses,

- Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from ljarah are recognized as an
expense in the profit and loss account in the periad in which they are incurred.

Murabaha Finance

Funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as ‘Advance for Murabaha'. On culmination of
Murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, Murabaha financings are recorded at the deferred sale
price. Goods Purchased but remaining unsocld at the balances sheet date are recorded as
inventories. Profit on Murabaha Financings is recognized on accrual basis. Profit on Murabaha
transactions for the period from the date of disbursement to the date of culmination of Murabaha is
recognized immediately upon the later date. Profit unearned at balance sheet date is deferred and
recorded as deferred murabaha income. Financing are stated net of specific and general Provisions
against non- performing financings, if any, which are charged to the profit and loss account.

Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

These are stated at cost less estimates made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all
outstanding amounts at the reporting date. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are written
off when identified.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3N

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities appearing in the
financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset io be ulilized.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. However, the Modaraba has not recognized any amount
in respect of deferred tax in these financial statements as the Modaraba intends to continue availing
the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least 90% of its profits to its certificate holders

every year.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Modaraba's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. Impairment loss determined as the difference
between carrying value and recoverable amount being higher of asset's fair value less cost to sell
and value in use. If such an indication exists, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order
to determine the extent of impairment loss. The resulting impairment loss is recognized in the profit
and loss account.

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

These are carried at amortized cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for goods and services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past obligating events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Provision is maintained as per the regulatory requirement or 0.5% of the ijarah rental receivables,
murabaha finance and diminishing musharaka, whichever is higher. Such provision is charged to
profit and loss account.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan - employees provident fund

The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees and equal
contributions by the employer and employee to the provident fund are made at the rate of 10% of the
basic salaries of employees.
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3.13

314

3.15

Defined benefit plan - employees gratuity fund

The Modaraba operates a gratuity fund for all eligible employees who have completed the minimum
three years of service. The fund is administered by the trustee nominated under the Trust Deed. The
contributions to the Fund are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses arising at each valuation date are recognized immediately.

Revenue recognition
The revenue recognition of the Modaraba is based on the following policies:

. For ljarah arrangements, ljarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and
when rentals become due. In case of ljarah arrangements with staggered rentals, the income
is recognized on a straight line basis over the ljarah term.

- Income in respect of non-performing ljarah finance is held in suspense account, where
necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas
issued by the SECP.

- Documentation charges, front end fees and other ljarah related income are taken to the profit
and loss account on an accrual basis.

- Profit on Diminishing Musharaka arrangements is recognized under the effective mark-up
rate method based on the Amount outstanding.

- Mark-up / return on deposits / investments is recognized on accrual basis using the effective
profit rate method.

- Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Proposed profit distribution to certificate holders

Dividends declared made subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events
and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared.

Earnings per certificate

Basic earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the period by the
weighted average number of certificates outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
certificate is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders by
taking into account the conversion of any dilutive potential ordinary certificates.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani Rupees at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the seitlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates are recognized in the profit and loss account.
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3.16 Segment reporting
As per IFRS B: "Operating Segments", segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting used by the chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for

the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers the business to have a single operating
segment.

The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and
the Modaraba's performance is evalualed on an overall basis.

3.17 Related party transactions

All transactions with related party are priced on arm's length basis. Prices of these transactions are
determined on the basis of admissible valuation methods.

3.18 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Modaraba's right to receive dividend is established.
3.19 ljarah rental receivable

These are stated at amount recoverable net of provision (if any),

3.20 Compensated absences

The Modaraba makes provision in the financial statements for its liability towards compensated
absences based on the leaves accumulated upto the balance sheet date.

June 30,2022 June 30,202
4, CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note  =-—-=s-eemee- B S {T] 1 1-T-T J— -
Stamp papers in hand 72,700 82,500
Cash in hand . -
Balances with banks
. on deposit accounts 4.1 492,734,368 474 747 249
- on current accounts 4.2 1,369,033 684,542

494,176,101 475,524,291

4.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.50% to 11% per annum. (2021: 3.52% to 6.64% per annum). This
includes balance of Rs. 483.51 million {2021: Rs. 474.72 million) held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic Banking
Unit, a related party.

4.2 This includes balance of Rs. 1,294,517 (2021; Rs, 662 938) held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic Banking Unit,
related party.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

7.2

Juna 30,2022 Jure 302021
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Note  —=—ee—memeeeee [ TTT T —

Term deposit receipts 5.1 320,000,000 320,000,000

This represents investment made in Term Deposit Receipts in Meezan Bank Limited - Islamic Banking, for a
period of & months maturity on monthly rollover basis at the mark-up rate of 12.25% per annum  (June 2021:
Rs5.320 million in Sindh Bank Limited, a related party for a period of 3 months maturity at the mark-up rate of
7.00% per annum),

June 30,2022 Jure 30,2021
ADVAMCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note — === RUpE@S messeesrensmenns
Advances 6.7 7,562,220 25,540,683
Prepayments 744,855 668,173
Accrued income from bank deposits 6.2 5,294,718 3,231,056
Accrued income from term deposit receipts 6.2 2,684,932 4,725,480
Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka 6.3 4,638,686 2.964 624
Other receivables 8,000 G, 000

20,933,411 37,136,016

This includes advance to vendors in respect of acquisition of assets under Diminishing Musharaka arrangement
for onward delivery lo lessee (customer) amounting to Rs. 1.55 million (2021: Rs. 24.385 millian).

This includes accrued income of Rs. 5245595 (2021: Rs. 3,230977) in bank deposits and Rs. NIL (2021:
4,725,480} in lerm depaosils held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic Banking Unit, related party.

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka e RUPEES —-momeeeeeee
Receivable 21,766,615 16,803,041
Less: Income suspend (17,127,929) (13.838.417)

4,638,686 2,964,624

June 30,2022 Jure 30,2034
DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA Mote — ——=——e—e——eeee Rupees —--—-——memmmmn
Receivables - secured 7.1 901,928,698 859,574,172
Less: current portion (338,062,224) (367.318,842)
Less: provision in respect of diminishing musharaka 7.2 (58.220,676) (44,961 ,6861)
Mon-current portion 505,645,798 447 203 669

This represents finance provided to Individual and Corporate clients under Diminishing Musharaka arrangements
for periods ranging 3 to 20 years (2021; 3 to 20 years) which s secured against morlgage of property, lien on title
documents and charge on assels eic.

This includes general provision of Rs.3.96 million (2021: Rs.3.69 millicn) made at the rate of 0.5% {2021; 0.5%)
an diminishing musharaka recelvables respectively.
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7.2.1 Movement in provision in respect of Diminishing Musharakah

2022 2021
General Specific Total General Specific Total
Rupees
Opening 3,694 102 41.267.559 44 961.661 3.804,751 27,643,202 31,448 0343
Charge for the year 261,788 15,118,146 15,379,944 + 13,624 267 13,624 267
Reversal during the year - (2,120,929) (2,120,929) (110,649 - (110,64%)
Closing 3,955,900 54,264,776 58,220,676 3,694,102 41,267,569 44 961 6061
June 30,2022 Jume 30 2021
8. LONG TERM LOAN IO e —— RUPEOS =memesameenan

Long term loan - considered good 8.1 3,188,566 1,480,500
Less; current portion of long term loan (809,600) (378.000)

2,378,966 1,102,500

81 This includes Rs. 2.086 million (2021: NIL) and Rs. 1.102 million (2021: 1.480 million ) against car loan provided to
Mr. Adnan Shakeel - CFO & Co. Secretary and Mr. Kailash Moolani - Chief Internal Auditor respectively, related
parties in accordance with the Monatization Policy approved by the Board,

9. [|JARAH ASSETS

June 30, 2022
Cost Depreciation
Charge / Met book
Particulars As at July Disposals As at June | As at July [(adjustment) As at June i Depreciation
01, 2021 pa 30, 2022 01, 2021 for the 30, 20z2 rate
year
Rupees
Flant and machinery 80,000,000 - - 75,000,000 - » = 33.33%
(80,000,000 (75,000,000
Vehlcles 10,571,500 - = 10,566,500 - = . 20%
{10,571,500) (10,566,500)
80,571,500 - = 85,566,500 - - -
(90,571,500) (85,566,500)
Jume 3, 2021
Caost Depraciation
Charga / Fet book 2
As at July - As gt June | As at July As at June = Depreciation
Parbculars Disposals {adjustment) value
01, 2020 0, 2021 01, 2020 far the year 30, 2021 rate
..... N T .
Plant and machinery 80,000,000 - 80,000,000 74,993 088 12 75,000,000  5000,000 33.33%
Wehicles 13,113,500 - 10,571,500 10,963,420 2,143,080 20%
! ; 3 I 10,566,500 5,000
(2,542,000 {2.540,000)
93,113.500 - 40,571,500 85,963,408 2,143,092 85,506,500 5,005,000
(2,542 000) (2,540,000)
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9.1 The Modaraba has entered into ljarah arrangemenis for periods ranging from 3 to 5 years (2021: 3 to & years)
against which security deposits were oblained at the time of disbursement (note 12).

June 30,2022 June 30,2021

10. FIXED ASSETS - In own use [T 1 T — ---- Rupees s i
Tangible assets 10.1 2,473,808 3,235 588
Intangible assets 10.2 104,820 159,834

2,578,628 3,385,422

10.1 TANGIBLE ASSETS

June 30, 2022
Cost Depreciation
As at July Asstdune| AsatJuly Chargator AsatJune| Mo Po9K |p o reciation
Fartipulars 01,2021 7AdMOnS o o022 | 01,2021 theyear 30,2022 | YAMe Rate
Rupees

Furniture and fittings 1,536,245 - 1,536,245 795,534 153,624 949 158 587 087 10%
Office equipment 3,272,641 19,895 3,292,536  2,481.057 467,172 2,948,229 344,307 20%

Vehicles 1,354,275 - 1,354,275 545,958 262152 808,110 546,165 20%
Computer and
BLOBSS0MRES 3,153,719 650,206 3,803,925 2,258,743 548,933 2,807.676 996,249 33.33%

9,316,880 670,101 9,986,981 6,081,292 1,431,881 7,513,173 2,473,808

June 30, 2021
Cost Degraciation
As at July Asatdune | AsatJuly  Charge for As at Juna Bietibeaoy Cepreciation
Panicum 01,2020  A99ONS o onor | 01,2020 theyear 30,2021 | “AUe i

Rupees

Fumilure and fitings 1,416,245 120,000  1,536.245 646,910 148 624 795,534  T40.711 10%
Office aquipment 3.272 641 - JETIE41 1 0dEB3TT G34680 2481057 741,584 20%

Wehicles 1,354 275 - 1,354,275 283,806 262,152 545,958 804,317 20%
Computer and
BCeEssOnes 2,454,258 E99.460 3,153,719 1,871,691 387152 2,258,743 854,978 33.33%

8,497 420 B19460 9,316,880 4748684 1,032,608 6,081,292 3,235,588
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10.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

June 30, 2022
Cost Amortization
Met book
Saiicaiim As at July Additions As at June| AsatJuly Charge for As at.June xishias Amortization
01, 2021 30, 2022 01, 2021 the year 30, 2022 rate

Rupees

Website 37,647 - 37,647 37,646 - 37,646 1 33.33%

Almanac software 800,000 - £00,000 769,999 - 794,999 1 33.33%

Software licenses 1,254,445 19,890 1,274,335 1,094,613 74904 1,169,517 104,818 33.33%

2.002,002 19,890 2111982 1,932,258 74004 2007162 104,820

June 30, 2021
Cost Amartization
Particulars As at July Additions AsatJune | AsatJduly  Charge for  As al June Ni‘z‘:}k Amortization
) 0, 2020 30, 2021 a1, 2020 the year 30, 2021 rate
Rupeess
Website 37,647 - 37 647 a7 646 - 37 646 1 33.33%
Almanac softwars 800,000 - 800,000 533,328 266,671 780,999 1 33.33%

Software licenses 1,041,335 2134110 1,254,445 1,041,333 53280 1,094 513 159,832 33.33%
1,878 982 213,110 2,082,082 1,612,307 19051 1,932 258 159,834

11.  CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES June 30,2022 Jung 30,2021
Note =---eemeeeeeee- Rupees -----—--s--meeax
Craditors 6,441 6,441
Modaraba management company's remuneration payable - related party 11,352,217 7,862 480
Accrued expenses 11.1 8,270,117 7,241,964
Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on management company’s remuneration 1475788 1,022123
Payable to gratuily fund 11.3 1,097,429 1,070,048
Other liabilities 11.2 11,067,672 9,235 462

33,260,664 26438518

111 These includes Rs. 50,000 (2021: Rs. 300,000) for branch rent payable to Sindh BEank Limited, related party.

11.2  This also includes charily payable amounting 1o Rs. 551,406 (2021: Rs. 8,214). The reconcilialion is as follows:
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June 30,2022 June 30,2021

mmmmmmmemmannan PEES ===mmsemmmaeeas
Opening balance 8,214 8,212
Additions during the year 543,192 250,002
Less: paid to recognized charitable institutions 11.2.1 - (250,000}
Closing balance 551,406 8214

11.2.1 This represents NIL charity paid to recognized charitable institution (2021: Rs.250,000).

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Note -------—---- Rupees ---—---eee-meu-
11.3 Payable to gratuity fund 11.3.1 1,097,429 1,070,048
11.3.1 Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,254,728 2,059,290
less: Fair value of plan assets (2,157,299) {989,242)
Balance sheet liability 1,097,429 1,070,048
11.3.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Dpening balance 2,059,290 2.650,862
Current sarvice cosl 621,373 1,041,807
Interest cost 211,077 225,323
Liability transferred to other group company - (1.632,030)
Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income
- Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 15,020 5,793
- Experience adjustiments 347,968 {32 565)
362,988 (26,772)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,254,728 2,059,280
June 30,2022 June 30,2021
11.3.3 Changes in fair value of planassets e Rupggs ---—---sm-ae--
Fair value of plan assets 989,242 1,748 539
Contributions 1,070,048 802,323
Interest income on plan assets 156,237 186,975
Asseis fransferred to other group company - (1.832,030)
Return on plan assets/{charges), excluding interest income {58,228) (16,565)
Fair value of plan assets 2,157,299 989,242
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11.3.4

11.3.5

11.3.6

Expense recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost
Interast cost
Interest income on plan assets

Expense recognized in profit and loss account

Total remeasurement chargeable in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial (gain) / loss from changes in financial assumplions
Experience adjustments

Less: Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

Remeasurement of actuarial (gains) { losses on defined benafit liability

Changes in net liability

Balance sheet liability/{asset)

Expenses to be charged to profit and loss account
Remeasurement chargeable in other comprehensive income
Contributions

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss account
Discount rate used for year end obligation

Salary increase used for year end obligation
Salary increase FY 2021

Salary increase FY 2022

Salary increase FY 2023

Salary increase FY 2024

Salary increase FY 2025

Salary increase FY 2026

Salary increase FY 2027

Salary increase FY 2028 onwards

Met salary is increasad at

Maortality rates

Si NDH Mﬂ DARABA

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).
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June 30,2022 Jure 30,202
Note --——eemee—ee—- Rupeas —--—--—- -
621,373 1.041 807
211,077 225323
(156,237) (186.,975)
676,213 1,080,255
15,020 5,793
347,968 (32,565)
362,988 (26.772)
58,228 16,565
421,216 {10.207)
1,070,048 902,323
676,213 1,080,255
421,216 (10,207)
(1,070,048) 1902,323)
1,097,429 1,070,048
June 30,2022 June 30,2021
sesnnemsees PEFCENIAQE ~—mesesaas
10.25% 8.50%
13.50% 10.25%
- M/A
N/A 10.25%
13.50% 10.25%
13.50% 10.25%
13.50% 10.25%
13.50% 10.25%
13.50% 10.25%
13.50% -
1-Jul-22 1-Jul-21
SLIC sLIC
(2001-05)-1 {2001-05)-1



I impany 19 DA Ml e Rl R

SINDH ﬁ;iDDARA.BA

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
e RUPRES —mmmmmeemmeeeee

Age-based Age-based
Withdrawal rales (per iper

appendix) appendix)
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

June 30,2022 g June 30,2021
Estimated expenses to ba charged to P&L
Currant services cosl 974,582 621,373
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 430,371 206,058
Interest income on plan asset (354,446) (142,622)
1,050,507 684,809

Plan assets comprise at June 30, 2022
Cash and/or deposils 100% 100%
Year end sensitivity (+/- 100bps) on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate +100 bps 2,879,939 1,804,573
Discount rate - 100 bps 3,701,868 2,387,001
Salary increase +100 bps 3,702,521 2,367,505
Salary increase - 100 bps 2,872,598 1,789,373
Expected benefit payments for the next 10 years and beyond
FY 2022 - 87,929
FY 2023 133,596 112,349
Fy 2024 164,716 136,240
FY 2025 762,992 661,159
FY 2026 230,093 150,186
FY 2027 258,154 160,769
FY 2028 289,819 171,666
Fy 2029 325,765 183,049
FY 2030 371,500 201,151
Fy 2031 1,785,192 224 769
FY 2032 454,226 66,285,985
FY 2033 ocnwards 182,219,826 -
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13 years 14 years
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12

121

13.

131

13.2

13.3

14.

14.1

June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Mote —------mmmmmee RUPEES =wenemmemmmmmnan
CUSTOMERS' SECURITY DEPOSIT
Security deposit against ijarah finance - 2,005,000
Less: Current portion - (5,005, 000)

Mon-current portion 12.1 - -

This represents amounts received under jjarah finance repayable [ adjustable at the expiry of the arrangemenl.

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

Authorized certificate capital

June 30,2022 June 30,2021 June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Mumber of certificates Rupees
50,000,000 50,000,000 Modaraba cerificates of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid - up certificate capital

June 30,2022 June 30,2021 June 30,2022 June 30,2021
Number of certificates Rupees
45,000,000 45000000 Modaraba certificates of Rs: 10 each fully paid incash - 450,000,000 450,000,000

As at June 30, 2022, Sindh Modaraba Management Limited {Management Company) holds 42 446,000 i.e. 94.33%
(2021: 42 446 000 e 94 33%) certificates of the Modaraba.

June 30,2022 Jupe 30,2021
RESERVES Note ---——--—--- Rupees —----—--—
Capital
Statutory reserve 14,1 144,281,132 121,071,504
Revenue
Unappropriated profit 51,667,838 53,985,460

195,948,870 175,056 564

Slatulory reserve represents profit sel aside by the Modaraba to comply with the Modaraba Regulations issued by
the SECP. These regulations reguire the Modaraba to transfer not less than 20% and not more than 50% of its
profit after tax till such time that reserves equal 100% of the paid up certificate capital. Thereafter, a sum not less
than 5% and not more than 20% of its after tax profits.

During the year, the Modaraba has transferred an amount of Rs. 13,262 644 (2021: Rs. 26,537,818) which
represents 20% (2021 35%) of the net profit for the year.

45




ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2022

I impany 0 DiaiE Ml tegies Biseas lmm

SINDH MODARABA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

16.1.1

17.

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
LONG TERM LOAN 15.1 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000

This represents interest free loan provided by the Management Company (related party) to the Modaraba. The
loan is sub-ordinated to senior debt and is repayable at the discretion of Madaraba. The Medaraba has the
aption to issue modaraba certificates in future against this loan, subject to necessary regulatory approvals.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
CONTINGENCIES

The Modaraba received a letter from the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board (SRB), wherein, it is
menticned that during scrutiny of the financial statements of the Modaraba from July-2014 to March 2018 he
came lo know that the Modaraba is engaged in providing / rendering laxable services which falls under the
Second Schedule of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act), and the sales tax on such sarvices
mainly ljarahflease rentals aggregates to Rs, 27.67 milion which is outstanding. Such letters were also
received by some other Modarabas and collectively, a petition against the same was filed through a common
legal counsel in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging levy of Services Sales Tax on ljarah/flease
financing transactions. The Honorable High Court has granted a stay stating that no adverse order in respect
of the proposed treatment shall be made against the Petitioners.

The management of the Modaraba based on discussions with its legal counsel is of the view that the Sindh
Sales Tax is not applicable on ljarah transactions and expect that the matter will be decided in Modarabas’
favor. Accordingly, no liability in respect of the above has been recognized in these financial statements.

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
INCOME FROM IJARAH FINANCING - NET - == RUPEES s=sresnsecsnas
ljarah financing - 2,712,448
Less: ijarah depreciation
- on plant and machinery 5 (12)
- on vehicles - {2,143,080)
- (2,143,082}
- 569,356
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18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Legal and professional charges

Repairs and maintenance

Utility services

Takaful { insurance - owned asseis
Takaful / insurance - ijarah and diminishing musharaka
Postage, courier and telegraphs
Generator sharing and fuei charges
Entertainment

Advertiserment and publicalions

Stall orientation and Iraining

Rent, rates and laxes

Registration and subscription fee
Travelling and conveyance

Security services

Printing, stationery and photacopy
Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation expense - langible assels
Amortization expense - intangible assets
Miscellaneous

Note

18.1
18.2

18.3

184

18.5
10.1
10.2

i el iy (o A EITS ASCRITRAR BRI BHUTTD

SINDH MODARABA

June 30, 2022 Juine 30, 2021

 ——— Rupees --—-nnmmmx —
26,117,326 32,887 885
1,779,789 2,032,064
896,137 895 347
1,177,542 1,023,904
145,233 171,572
448,189 375,824
196,769 114,318
925,358 520,808
188,632 164,187
176,450 313,272
6,000 3,000
799,996 800,016
1,201,624 1,183,148
3,764,839 2,835,248
600,000 600,000
505,479 437,330
305,294 279,704
1,431,881 1,332 608
74,904 319,951
146,287 152,484
40,887,729 46,442 770

This includes amount of Rs. 855,955 (2021: Rs. 1,104,994 paid | charged to provident fund and pravision for

grafuity of Rs. 676,213 (2021; Rs. 1,080,255),

This includes amount of Rs. 432 000 (2021: Rs. 432,000) charged to Shariah Advisor as compensation for his

service.

This includes amount of Rs. 720,000 (2021: Rs. 436,860) against sharing of expenses with Sindh Insurance

Limited - related partly.

This includes amount of Rs. 600,000 (2021: Rs. 600,000} branch rent to Sindh Bank Limited - related party.

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Half yearly review fee
Special certification
Other services

Sindh sales tax

Out of pocket expenzes
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June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

------- -- Rupees —----—e-m-
160,930 146,300
48,400 44,000
42 350 38,500
20,000 20,000
22,614 18,904
11,000 11,000
305,294 278,704
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. June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
18.6 The remuneration paid to key management personnel Note Rupees 1
Basic salary 4,836,992 T.B6T 152
House rent 2,176,647 2 BB%. 686
Other allowances 967,380 2,223,743
Bonuses 1,105,689 2,055,858
Pravident fund 483,685 788,709
Other benefits 2,348,279 3,048,166
11,918,672 18,871,314
Unaudited Audited
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
18.7 Defined contribution plan ssssssssesanss RUPEES ssassmsssssnss
Size of the fund (lotal assets) 12,090,086 9,361,340
Cost of investment made 11,897,768 9,310,730
Fair value of investment made 11,997,768 9,310,730
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
e PRrcentage -—--—--—-—--
Percentage of investment made 99% 99%
Break up of Investment at cost
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Rupees Percentage Rupaas Parcentage
11,997,768 99% 9,310,730 99%
June 30, 2022 Juna 30, 2021
18, PROVISION/(REVERSAL) FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES
Provision against Diminishing Musharaka 7.2 13,259,015 13,513,618
13,259,015 13,513,618
20. OTHER INCOME - NET
Documentation and processing fee 641,177 297,100
Others 5,788 39,545
646,965 336,645
21. MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION 21.7 11,352 217 7862 480

211 The Modaraba Management Company is enfitled to remuneration under the provisions of the Modaraba
Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 upto a maximum of 10% per annum of
annual profits of the Modaraba computed in the prescribed manner. The remuneration for the year ended June
30, 2022 has been recognized at 10% of the profit for the year before charging such remuneration and

taxation.
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22,

221

22.2

231

23.2

24,

June 30, 2022 Junes 30, 2021
TAXATION Nota ~  -—=-=-—eeeee- Rupees —-—-——-—
Provision for the year:
Current 221 34,380,942
Prior period -
Deferred 22.2 -
34,380,942
Advance tax:
Tax deducted [ collected at source (10.376.164)
Tax paid / adjusted {19,426,608)
(29,802,772)
4,578,170 -

The provision for current tax is based on normal income tax charge as per the relevant sections of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, The Modaraba availed benefit of tax exemption for the year ended June 30, 2021, therefare,
no current tax charge in comparative period.

Deferred tax asset amounting to Bs. 15 million has not been accounted for in these financial statements due fo
uncertainties regarding the future taxable profits against which such asset would be utilized.

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic

Basic earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the net profit after taxation for the year by the weighted
average number of certificates outstanding during the vear as follows:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

————— Rupees —----seemeeeee
Profit for the year after taxation (Rupses) 66,313,222 75,822 337
Weighted average number of certificates (Numbers) 45,000,000 45,000,000
Eamings per certificate (Rupess) 1.47 1.68

Diluted

Diluted earnings per certificate has not been presented as the Modaraba does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at June 30, 2022 which would have any effect on the samings per certificate.

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2031
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES = eceeeeeeeeeee Numbers ---s---m-eeeee--
Total numbers of employees at year end 14 13
Average number of employees 14 13
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25. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Modaraba has related party relaticnship with the Management Company, its associated companies,
Directars and key management personnel.

The details of related party transactions and balances otherwise than disclosed else where in these financial
statement are as foliows:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

251 BALANCES AS AT YEAR END NOtE  eeoeeeeeeenee: RUPEES =mumemmsnmnaan

Sindh Insurance Limited - associated company

Sharing of Expenses payable - 218,430
252 TRANSACTIONS FOR THE YEAR

Sindh Bank Limited - associated company

Income from deposits 46,574,435 43,808,562

Income from term deposit receipt 12,352,874 14,810,942

Branch rent paid 850,000 600,000

59.777,309 __ 59,219.504_

Sindh Modaraba Management Limited - management company

Share of profit paid - 99,044,812
Modaraba management company's remuneration paid 7,862,480 12,411,104
Dividend paid / distributed 42,446,000 57,302,100

50,308,480 128,758,016

Sindh Insurance Limited - associated company

Takaful / insurance paid 852,078 895,240
Sharing of expenses paid 968,635 436,860
1,820,713 1,332,100

Key Management Personnel
Salaries, allowances and benefits paid 18.6 11,918,672 18,871,314

Sindh Modaraba Employees Provident Fund - employee fund
Contribution paid (both employer's and employee's contribution) 1,711,910 2,209,858

Sindh Modaraba Employees Gratuity Fund - employee fund
Contribution paid 1,070,048 802,323
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26.

27.

271

27141

271.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY Note
Financial assets as per balance sheet

At amortized cost
Current assels

June 30, 2022

- Rupees -

June 30, 2021

Cash and bank balances 494 176,101 475,524,291
_ Short term investments 320,000,000 320,000,000
e Advances and other receivables 20,188,556 36,467,843
z Current portion of diminishing musharaka 338,062,224 367,318,842
- Current portion of long term loan 809,600 378,000

MNon-current assels

1,173,236,481

1,199,688 876

i Long term portion of diminishing musharaka 505,645,798 447 203 669
- Long term loan 2,378,966 1,102,500
508,024,764 448 396,169
1,681,261,245 1,648,085,145
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet
At amortized cost
Current labilities
- Credilors, accrued and other liabilities 32,469,668 25,638.522
- Profit distribution payable 787,924 653.258
__ 33,257592 26,291, 780

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The aclivities of the Modaraba expose it o a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors of the Management Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Modaraba's risk management framework.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, profit rate risk
and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables
exist In foreign currencies. As al June 30, 2022, Modaraba has no financial assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies,

Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in the market profit rates. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimise its exposure
to this risk,
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27.1.3 Price risk

21.2

27.2.1

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in markel prices {other than those arising from profit rale risk or currency risk) whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. As on June 30, 2022, the Modaraba did not hold any instruments
which exposed it to price risk,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other parly to incur a financial loss. The risk generally emanates from balances with banks, ljarah rentals
receivable, Investments and Diminishing Musharaka arrangements, deposits and other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancement amounts are as follows:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021

————— Rupees —--eeeeeeeen
Cash and bank balances 494,176,101 475,524,291
Short term investments 320,000,000 320,000,000
Diminishing Musharaka 843,708,022 81461251
Advances and other receivables 20,188,556 36,467,843
Long term loan 3,188,566 1,480,500

1,681,261,245 1648085145

As at June 30, 2022, there were no financial assets which were pledged as collateral for liabilites or contingent
liabilities of the Modaraba.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregale credit exposure is slgnificant in relation to the Modaraba's total credit
exposure, Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Modaraba's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry,

The Modaraba manages credit risks and its concentration through diversification of activilies to avoid undue
concentration of risk with individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Modaraba
has established exposure limits for individuals and industrial sectors,

52



i el vy (o R FEITS ASCRITRARA. BSaTTE BHUTTD
¥

(O
SINDH MODARABA

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

27.2.2 Details of the sector analysis of gross investment portfolio is as follows:

27.2.3

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Sectors Rupees % Rupees Yo
Sugar 102,391,330 41.35 163,750 662 18.68
Oil & Gas - Oil Marketing - - 13,125,000 1.50
Security services 31,087,040 3.45 16,856,616 1.2
Other services 30,095,314 3.34 42,190,116 4.81
individual 32,143,608 3.56 8,965,657 1.02
Brokerage 634,677 0.07 1,102,621 0.13
Transport 59,683,888 6.62 68 652 822 7.83
Metal & Stesl 2,275,000 0.25 1,873,524 021
Construction 147,210,176 16.32 206,167,939 23.53
Pharmaceutical 30,465,000 3.38 60,454 205 6.90
Paultry, Poultry feed & hatcheary 52,706,589 5.84 57,532,213 6.56
Chemical & Allied (Other) 42,499,515 4.71 15,940,111 182
Textile 83,149,560 9.22 62,947 267 718
Food & Beverages 68,750,000 7.62 110,808,595 12.64
Enginearing - - 283,341 0.03
Real Estate - - 22 676,695 2.59
Energy 4,522,225 0.50 8,230,148 0.94
Heaith 199,500,000 2212 = -
Others 14,814,776 1.64 14,821,681 169
901,928,698 100 876,377,213 100

Management of credit risk

The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management
polices and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations (PRs) for Modarabas issued by the SECP. The
Modaraba seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of its ljarah and Diminishing
Musharka arrangements to avold undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers In

spacific locations or businesses.

The credit quality of Modaraba's financial assets with banks is assessed with reference to external credit

ratings.

June 30, 2022 June 3, 0
Credit risk ratings Rating = -==cemee- S L1711 T R—
Bank balances - Sindh Bank Limited A+ A1 484,432 553 AT4 718,761
Bank balances - Meezan Bank Limited ALASA-+ 5,599,447 -
TDRs - Meezan Bank Limited AAAIA-1+ 320,000,000 320,000,000
Bank balances - Bank Alhabib Limited AAA A1+ 13,455 13,357
Bank balances - NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited Al A1 16,438 15,131

814,061,893 704 747,249
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27.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall dus,
Ligquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba will be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected
or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Moda-
raba's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meet
its llabilities when due. under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Modaraba's reputation, The maturity profile of Modaraba's financial assets and liabiliies based on the
contractual maturities is as follows:

2022
Profit bearing MNon - prefit bearing
Maturity Maturity
Maturity upto | after 1 year Maturity upto | after 1 year Total
il ke HFL s | SubTotal fyear | anduptos| SuBTotl
years Years

Maturities of assets and liabilities Rupees
Flnancial assets
Cagh and bank balances 402,734 36E - 432,734,368 1,441,733 - 1441733 404 176,101
Shart ferm investments 320,000,000 . 320,000,000 - - . 320,000,000
Diminishing Musharaka 338,062,224 505645708 843,708,022 - - - B43,TOE,022
Learsgy herrry baan - - . B00E00 2378966 3,188 566 3,188 566
Advances and other recaivables - B - 20,188,556 - 20,188 556 20,188,556

1,150,796,592 505,645,798  1,656,442,390 22439889 2,378,966 24 B16,855  1,681,261,245

Finamcial liabilities

Craditors, accrusd and other liabilities - L . 32,469, 668 - 32,469 668 32,460 B6E
Prolt destribubion payabie - - . T87,924 - TBT 824 TET 924
= A i 33,257,592 - 33,257,592 53,257 502
204
Profil bearing Mon - profit bearing
Maturily
Maturily upto 1 H!ﬂ;ilt:::;r Siib Total Malurity upta 1 | after 1 year Sl Total Total
WEAT upto 5 pears AT and upto 5
YEATS

Maturities of assets and liabilities Rupess
Financial assets
Cash and bank balancas 474,747 248 - 474,747,243 177 0a2 - TIT042 475,524,201
Short term investments 320,000,000 = 320,000,000 = = - 320,000,000
Diminishing Musharaka 38T 316,842 447203 65D 214 612 511 - - E B14,812.511
Lo Rarm baan +* - - 378000 1102500 1,460,500 1,460,500

Advances and cther recelvables - - - 36,467,842 - 36,467 843 36,467 843
1.162.066,001 447 203 660 1,608 359 760 3T 22885 1,102,500 38725385 1.648.085145

Financizl liabilities

Credizors, accreed and other liabilities = - - 25,538 522 x 25,638 522 25,638,522
Profit distribution payable - - - 653 258 - 653 258 653,258
= - ) 26,001 180 ; 291, 201,
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28,

30.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a sound capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which
the Modaraba defines as net profit for the year divided by total Certificate holders' equity. The Board of Directors
also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary cerificate holders,

The Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Modaraba finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a view to maintain
an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. There is no borrowing made by the
Modaraba as at the balance sheet date, therefore, no gearing rafio is calculated.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concern without any
intention or requirement lo curlail materially the scale of ils operalions or to underlake a lransaclion on adverse
terms.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, 'Fair value measurements' requires the Modaraba to

classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- qguoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1};
- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thal are observable for the assel or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and

- inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

As at 30 June 2022, there were no financial instruments which were measured at fair values in the financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

As per IFRS 8: "Operating Segments”, segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
used by the chief operating decision-maker, The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers the business
lo have a single operaling segment, The Modaraba's assel allocation decisions are based on a single integrated
investment strategy and the Modaraba's performance is evaluated on an overall basis.

1]
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31.

32.

33.

The internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer for the Modaraba's assets, liabilities and
performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The Modaraba is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Modaraba's income is from investment in entities incorporated
in Pakistan,

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single repertable segment.

Revenue from operation fram len major customers of the Modaraba constitules 71.39% (2021: 76.19% from ten
major customers) of the total revenue from operations during the year ended 30 June 2022.

NON - ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Management Company in their meeting held on September 07, 2022 approved a
cash disfribution of Rs. 1.20 per cerificate. The financial statements of the Modaraba for the year ended June
30, 2022 do not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the
Modaraba for the year ending June 30, 2023,

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Mote Rupees
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and bank balances 4 494,176,101 475,524,201
Short term investments 5 320,000,000 320,000,000

814,176,101 795,524 291

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Prior year's figures have been reclassified for the purpose of befter presentation and comparison whers
considerad necessary.
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34, DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 07, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

35. GENERAL

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

— XFM o 6“;&2

Chairman Acting Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern Of Certificate Holding By The Certificate Holders
As At June 30, 2022

Mumber Of Cartificate Holding Total Certificate
Certificate Holders From To Held
214 1 - 100 1,683
443 101 - 5040 219,535
56 501 - 1000 53,856
93 1001 - 5000 252,686
17 5001 - 10000 132,500
5 10001 - 15000 53,340
5 15001 = 20000 24,000
4 20004 - 25000 90,000
2 30001 - 35000 4,500
2 35001 - 40000 79,000
1 45001 - 50000 50,000
2 50001 - 55000 104,500
1 55001 - BO0O00 56,500
1 B5001 - TOO00 68,000
1 Too01 - T5000 75,000
1 TH001 - 20000 76,500
1 145001 - 150000 150,000
2 200007 & 205000 A08,000
1 245001 - 250000 249,000
1 265001 - 270000 267,500
1 42445001 - 42450000 42,446,000
854 45,000,000
Categories Of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
(i) Government; MNIL
(ii) Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (name wise details);
Sindh Modaraba Management Lid, 42 445,000 a4 3z
42,446,000 94,32
(iii) Mutual Funds; MIL

(iv) Directors, Chief Executive, and their spouse and minor children {(name wise details});

Rehan Anjum - Director 500 0.00
Ahmed Salman - Spouse (Rukhsana MNarejo - Director) 5,000 0.01
5,500 0.01
(v} Executives; NIL
{vi} Public Sector Companies and corporations; NIL
{vii) Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful Companies and NIL
Hatiz Limited 34 000 0.08
34,000 0.08
Individual
Local - Individuals 2.514 500 5.59
2,514,500 5.59
Grand Total: 45,000,000 100
b ders holdin W rcent or more voting ri in the Publi e n
Shares Held Percentage
Sindh Modaraba Management Ltd. 42,446,000 94.32
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 8"Annual Review Meeting of certificate holders of Sindh Modaraba will be
held on 26™0October 2022 at 10:30 A.M. at 602, Progressive Centre, 30-A, Block-6, P.E.C.H.5., Shahrah-
e-Faisal Karachi to review the performance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2022 in terms of
clause 20 of the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba issued vide Circular number 4/2004 by Registrar
Modaraba Companies and Modarabas.

z
=

Karachi M. Adnan Shakeel
Cctober 05, 2022 Company Secretary
Mote:

1. The Modaraba Certificate transfer book shall remain closed from October19, 2022 to October 26, 2022 (both
days inclusive) to determine the names of Certificate Holders entitled to receive dividend and to attend the
Annual Review Meeting. Transfers received in order at the registrar's office of the Modaraba up to the close of
the business on Octaber 18, 2022 will be treated in time Tor the entitlernent of profit distribution and to attend

Annual Review Meeting.

2. The cerificate holders are advised to notify to the registrar of Sindh Modaraba, any change in their addresses.

3. CDC certificate holders desiring to attend the meeting are requested to bring their original CNIC, Account, and
Participant's ID number, for identification purpose.
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